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RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 
 
1. Are the streets truly the design boundary? 

The streets represent what is considered as the 'natural boundary' - meaning a boundary 
guided by landmarks either at the streets themselves on the boundary (such as I-75); or an 
extension of a landmark (such as Joseph Campau Street due north of the Joseph Campau 
Greenway). There maybe design/ study implications beyond the boundary. That is for the 
consultant to determine and to what extent. 

 
2. Is community engagement limited to community meetings?  How is the community defined? 

In addition to the four (4) community meetings described in the Community Engagement task, 

the scope of work includes a half-day CSM master plan workshop with the client team. The 

primary community is defined as the Eastern Market study area’s neighborhoods and 

businesses.  Based on input from the City’s Department of Neighborhoods (DON) and the 

Eastern Market Corporation (EMC), neighborhoods bordering the study area may be included 

in the community engagement outreach and meetings.  

 
3. What is the other employment zone?  

The Market Core and the Neighborhood Business Innovation Zones are anticipated to be the 
primary employment zones in the study area.  The goal is for mixed-use development 
combined with food production and distribution activities to expand job opportunites of near 
by employment for local residents.  

 
4. Regarding 20/25 Strategy, does anything need to be considered? 

The Food Modernization Safety Act of 2011 should be considered. Also, the boundaries of the 
Food Innovation Zone as are a concept and not necessarily the final boundaries which will be 
based on the consultants findings and recommendations. 

 
5. Tax Impacts? 

Yes, tax impacts are to be estimated. See RFP Section 5.6.2 which describes the fiscal impacts 
to be analyzed based on the consultant’s recommended development program for the 
Neighborhood Framework Plan. 
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6. What percentage of goods comes from Canada? 

Retail Markets approximately 10%, wholesale market approximately 15% 
 
7.  Should road runoff be included in the impervious area we are trying to manage for the 

project (essentially, private property that gets charged by DWSD, or that plus public ROW as 

well)? 

The investigation into stormwater management opportunities should consider existing 
properties and future development, while including public ROWs as a mechanism for 
conveyance in order to develop a comprehensive approach. Since the focus of the CSM is on 
catalyzing future development opportunities on private property (specifically the larger 
footprint of the industrial food related business), the design elements should also consider 
maximizing volume controls per the standards set forth by the Drainage Charge credit manual, 
and the impending Post-Construction Stormwater Ordinance (not yet released for public 
disclosure). 

 
8. How much do you favor local proposals over national or international? 

Consideration of the RFP award is based on the best expertise within the parameters laid out 
in the RFP and the prebid conference. If there are national or international bids, it is expected 
that those bids are considerate of the fabric of Detroit and use the opportunity to empower 
Detroiters to the greatest extent possible. 

 
9. Regarding stormwater design feature, is there integration of transportation changes 

regarding stormwater?  
The consultant team is required to develop design alternatives.  If alternatives include changes 
to transportation based on stormwater design, the alternatives will be evaluated at that time. 

 
10. How does the Food Safety Modernization Act (FSMA) affect current business in the area? 

The FSMA act makes medium and large companies more unlikely to invest in older buildings 
because they are more difficult to make compliant with increasingly stringent food safety 
laws that include separating production processes from retail activities. The FSMA makes 
expanding the market district more crucial to retain and attract mid-sized food processors 
and distributors.  

 
11. How involved are Housing and Revitalization (HRD) and the Mayor’s Office, Jobs and 

Economy Team (JET)? 
HRD provided CDBG funding for the RFP. JET will be involved to ensure capturing the 
potential of economic growth and greater job opportunities.  HRD and JET are included on 
the list of city agencies and partners in RFP Section 10.6 and both organizations are 
members of the Selection Committee. 

 
12. Will the City of Detroit Professional Services Contract (PSC) be used for neighborhood 

development and implementation plans for the Eastern Market project?  

No, the City of Detroit’s PSC will not be used.  The contract will be with the Economic 

Development Corporation of the City of Detroit (EDC) which is staffed by DEGC. 
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13. If the contract is not going to be using a City of Detroit PSC, can a draft of the statement of 

Terms and Conditions that is anticipated to be the basis for negotiations be made 

available to all perspective bidders?  

EDC’s PSC  will be used.  The Terms and Conditions will be posted on the DEGC website no 
later than Friday, August 25th. 

 
14. Is there a website where pre-proposal information will be posted?  

Yes, http://www.degc.org/contractors/new-project-rfps 

 
15. If draft Terms and Conditions can be made available, can they be distributed prior to the 

Pre-Bid Meeting? 
Draft Terms and Conditions were not distributed at the Pre-Bid meeting held on August 14, 
2017.  See response to question 13. 

 
16. Is the project target budget of $775,000 taking in consideration the cost of environmental 

due diligence of the area? The reason I am asking is to know if there is any prior report 
that shows the historical usage of every area within that 1.1 square mile (i.e. prior gas 
station, dry cleaner, etc.). 
The target budget includes reviewing environmental conditions based on available data and 
field observations.  Environmental due diligence is not considered in the target project 
budget.  All known public historic data and reports have been listed in the RFP; however any 
additional information (public/private) identified and accessible to the DEGC throughout the 
project process will be passed along to the consultant team.  
 

17. What is the project budget?  

The target budget is $775,000 including expenses. 
 
18. Is mock pro-forma generation something of interest to illustrate the value of 

redevelopment to local property owners? 
This level of specificity is not required for the RFP scope of work or proposal submissions.  
Consultants are expected conduct their own internal analyses that support their 
development program recommendations for the Neighborhood Framework Plan. 

 
19. For community engagement, will that effort be led by the City and supported by the 

consultant team? Is there a need for local community engagement support? 
Yes. The DEGC/ City provides ultimate direction with logistical support from a consultant. It 
is advisable to have local community support; but, not required. 

 
20. For land assembly, will you provide us with existing ownership information? 

Yes, in conjunction with the Detroit Land Bank Authority and the Detroit Building Authority 
 
21. Can you provide a list of stakeholders to be included in focus groups/interviews? 

Yes, the EMC can provide to the selected consultant team the lists of participants in the 
2015 planning process for the Eastern Market 2025 Strategy and of current lists of vendors 
and merchants.  

http://www.degc.org/contractors/new-project-rfps
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22. Can you provide a complete list of stakeholder entities including all City of Detroit entities 
involved? 
See RFP Section 10.6 – City Agencies and Partners.  The DEGC will coordinate interactions 
between the consultant team and the city agencies and partners. 

 
23. Has the Selection Committee been established? If so, can we see who is on the 

committee? Or can we see a list of entities represented? 
The selection committee members are from the following organizations:  DEGC, PDD, TNC, 
EMC, HRD, and the JET (Mayors Office)  

 
24. Could you please clarify the role the consultant is expected to play and the extent of 

services expected for marketing and meeting logistics?  
The consultant will assist the DON Project Manager in marketing the public meetings and 
provide assistance in coordinating the public meeting agendas and logistics. 

 
25. Are you interested in evaluating the fiscal impact on any local taxing jurisdictions other 

than the City of Detroit and overlapping jurisdictions, such as Detroit Public Schools 
District, Wayne County, Wayne RESA, and Wayne County Community College, among 
others? If not, what non-overlapping, local jurisdictions would you like the consultant 
team to consider? 
Only local taxing jurisdication are needed for the fiscal impact analysis. Non-overlapping, 
local jurisdictions are not required. 
 

26. Are you interested in evaluating the economic impact on any geographic areas other than 
the city of Detroit? If so, what are the other areas of interest?  
The primary focus for direct and indirect economic impacts is the City of Detroit.  Impacts 
for the county and state may also be provided.  
 

27. What level of support do you expect to provide the consultant team for the community 
engagement and communications portion of the project? Will the responsibility of 
logistics and marketing for community stakeholder meetings primarily fall on the client 
team or the consultant team? 
See response to Question 19. 
 

28. For the market study PowerPoint presentation deliverable, are you requesting: 
a. The PowerPoint document only; or 
b. The PowerPoint document and that the consultant team present findings from the 
study to stakeholders? 
If you’re requesting that the consultant present the findings, how many presentations do 
you expect the consultant to deliver? 
The Powerpoint document summarizing the findings and recommendations is for a 
presentation to the client team that can be presented at a monthly in-person meeting.  The 
market study report is the deliverable for Volume III in the final report.  
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29. Will the following information be compiled and organized for the consultant team, or will 
the team have to seek out this information from the respective sources? 
a. Expansion plans of existing food processing companies in the NBIZ (5.2.1); 
b. EMC’s future plans for events and visitation data (5.2.1); 
c. Recently approved development proposals and existing conditions reports (5.3.1); and 
Existing information and previous feedback from the public/stakeholders regarding the 
Eastern Market (5.3.2). 
The information will be complied to the best of our ability. Development is fluid, so there 
will be a need to also consult with respective stakeholders through the DEGC 
 

30. Can you confirm that submissions must include pricing proposals based on a maximum 
contract length of one year, despite the anticipated project timeline set at nine (9) 
months?  
The pricing proposal should be based on the project’s nine (9) month schedule. 
 

31. Will the cover page, signature page, and table of contents count towards the page limit? 

The cover page, a single page table of contents, section dividers (if used) and the signature 
page are not included in the 20-page proposal limit. Note that the one-page resumes of key 
personnel are also not included in the 20-page limit. 

 
32. Can we include dividers and will they count towards the page limit? 

Yes, dividers can be included and they do not count towards the page limit. See response to 
question 31. 

 
33. Could you please provide a link to the Post-Construction Stormwater Ordinance 

referenced on page 7 of the RFP?  
This document is still under development, and not ready for public disclosure.  (see answer 
details in #7 for more information) 

 
34. Is there a prototype for the Watershed Improvement District referenced on pages 6 and 

18 in the RFP? 
This document is still under development, and not ready for public disclosure.    

 
35. What will the criteria be for selecting a consultant team? 

The proposal evaluation criteria and point allocations are provided in Section 7 of the RFP. 
 
36. What will be the timeline be for choosing a consultant team? 

Approximately two (2) weeks after the submission of proposals on August 30, 2017, a 
shortlist of consultant teams will be selected for additional information and interviews.  It is 
anticipated that interviews will be completed will be by the end of September and the 
finalist consultant team selected by early October 2017.  

 
37. What organizations will be represented on the selection committee – will DEGC, the 

Nature Conservancy, and the City all be involved? Will Eastern Market Corporation be 
involved? 
See response to question 23. 
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38. What has the level of outreach been so far to tenants, residents, vendors, and property 
owners regarding this project? Is there broad agreement on the goals of this project, or 
will the consultant be expected to develop consensus on the broad goals as part of the 
project?  
More than 600 stakeholders participated in the 2015 planning process which provided 
guidance for the development of the strategy that is the jumping off point for this work.  
Building consensus about how to implement the goals envisioned in the Eastern Market 
2025 Strategy is an important outcome of this planning process.   

 
39. Is there broad agreement among stakeholders on the proportion of residential; retail; 

vendor; interpretive/recreational space to warehouse/ wholesale; /logistics; and 
production space?  Or will the consultant need to bring stakeholders together to agree on 
a vision?  
There is no broad agreement for the boundaries or spatial allocations for the various  
development program land uses.  The consultants will need to bring together stakeholders 
to agree on a vision. 

 
40. Is there broad agreement among stakeholders regarding the proportion of urban 

agriculture to more intensive food logistics and processing facilities? Or will the consultant 
need to bring stakeholders together to agree on a vision?  
Urban agriculture is part of the open space network that the plan will develop. Top priority 
is to develop a mix of uses, especially but not limited to sites for food processing and 
distribution activities. Other uses include housing, general commercial and other uses.  The 
consultant will need to bring together stakeholders to agree on the vision. 

 
 
41. Overall strength of concept proposal, is it inferring design?  

No, design concepts are not required in submissions. If a respondent feels compelled to 
provide design concepts; that is their discretion; but submission rules still apply regarding 
the size of the submission document.  

 
42. Boundaries on economic impact? 

See response to question 26. 
 


